
United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
(o'ORTY·SECOND SESSION

Official Huord,lo

~PF(,TAL POLTTTCAL COMMJTTFF'
30th mp,ptinQ

hp]n nn

~h\lr!'\nllY, 19 November 1987
at 10 a.m.

Npw York

~ UMMAPY RFC0j1f1 rlF' THE 3Ot h MF'F'TJNG

AGENDA ITEM 7B: QUESTIONS REl.ATING TO INFORMATION (continuen)

(a) REPORT OF THF. COMMITTEF. ON INFOPMATTON (continuen)

(h) REPORT OF THE SF.CRETARY-GENERAl. (continuen)

(cl NOTE BY THE SECRETAPY-GENERAl. TRAN~MIT'!'ING THE REPORT OF THE

DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE UNITED NATION~ EDUCATIONAL, SCIENTIFIC AND
CtJI,TURAI, ORGANUATION (cant inue~)

AGF.Nf1A ITEM 751 REPORT OF THE SPECIAl. COMMITTF.E TO INVESTIGATE ISPAFLI PRi\CTICF~

AFFFC'I'ING THF. mTMAN RIGHTS OF THF. POPllLATION 0F THF OCCUPIF.D TFRPITORIES I REP0PTS

0F TilE SFCRETARY-GFNERAl. (cant i nilei'll

·nm H', ",d 1\ ,ullll'.' I" \,'lIr,lIp!l C',lrlt",II""' ,hllul\1 hi.' ,rill ulhkr thl' '1~lhll\I!I' "I ,I 111"'OIt'l'1 •• 1 Ihr ,1,01,­

IlIluln \'nnlcrnr,l Ill/hrll ,J,r,- """~ ,'f Ihr ,I,u,. '0' I".N'\.Ift,"1 I" the' ('hit" ,'Ith,' lllt"',,,1 Jot", ,'t,l, I ,II!III~ ~I.\'tl\'n

r,llllll I)('~')~d ~ ('tlllt,1 .... alll"n 1'111111, lln,lllh"'I"lllllt\lm 11 \'tlr~ ,,1 thr H"'llhl

87-57206 73BOS (F.)

f1istr. GFNERAL

A/SPC/4;'/SR.30
23 Novemher 1987

0RIGINAL, ENGLTSII

/ ..



A/sPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.30 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM 78: QUESTIONS RELATING TO INFORMATION (continued)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON INFORMATION (continued) (A/42/21)

(b) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A/42/494)

(c) NOTE BY THE SECRETARY-GENERAL TRANSMITTING THE REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR-GENERAL
OF THE UNITED NATIONS EDUCATIONAL, SCIENTIFIC AND CULTURAL ORGANIZATION
(continued) (A/42/571)

1. Mrs. SEVIGNY (Under-Secreta~y-General for Public Information)* said that she
had listened very carefully in the last five days to the statements made in the
Committee and appreciated the expressions of support from Member States for the
revitalization of the public information programme of the United Nations. Her sole
objective in the effort to strengthen that programme was to be able to perform the
tasks of the Department of Public Information (OPI) much more effectively and in
the most efficient manner. The aim of the DPI reorganization plan was to create
focal points, establish co-ordination in the programming, production and
distribution of its information materials and extend the outreach of the United
Nations to all corners of the world. As she had reiterated a number of times in
the past few months to the Committee on Information, the Committee for Programme
and Co-ordination, the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions
and the Special Political Committee, it was for Member States to decide on the
priorities and DPI, as part of the Secretariat, to implement the programmes as best
it could, within the limit of its financial resources. She was gratified that that
point was now generally accepted and hoped that DPI would be given sufficient time
to prove that it could attain that objective.

2. She was proud of the many and diverse talents which DPI staff had exhibited in
carrying out their responsibilities. In recent months, the Department had been
able to take a more active approach in several projects. For example, in
television the new short piece UN In Action was seen three minutes a week in almost
100 countries, directly or through the CNN report broadcast. Advances like the
electronic press release, press kits with charts, graphs and other visual material,
reprintable material prepared especially for non-governmental organizations,
advance kits for special events, contacting specialized press outside the United
Nations political press corps, urging in a systematic way heads of State or
Government to issue statements as had been done for United Nations Day, were the
kind of projects which would become the rule in the future.

3. Responding to specific questions raised by Member States, she said that one
important issue referred to, for example, by the representatives of Brazil, Guyana,

* This statement has been given full coverage in the summary record in
accordance with the decision taken by the Committee during the meeting.

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 3

(Mrs. Sevigny)

Lesotho and Pakistan, among others, concerned the future of the regional radio
programmes. She was committed to ensuring the continuation of regional radio
programmes. The main thrust of the restructuring of OPI was to enable it to adopt
a co-ordinated multi-media approach, so that the Unied Nations information
programme could become more effective. That would ensure hetter co-ordinat'on
between divisions within the Department as well as with other substantive
departments and programmes in the system. The radio programmes had to be
synchronized with the other programmes in terms of content and delivery in order to
ensure maximum impact. The representatives of Brazil and Pakistan respectively had
raised the question of Portuguese and Urdu programmes. DPI intended to reach as
wide an audience in the world as possible, and that had to be done by using a wide
a variety of means to communicate with them, in~,uding local adaptations, whenever
possible, of United Nations programmes. The way that would be done, however, would
have to be worked out in the next phase of the restructuring process of DPI, with
account taken of the resources at its disposal.

4. That applied also to the concerns expressed by the representatives of
Botswana, Lesotho, Tanzania and Zimbabwe, who had raised the question of the South
African languages. That question was directly connected to the public information
programmes against apartheid which were an important priority for OPT. In that
regard, the anti-apartheid radio programmes produced so far had been aimed mostly
at peoples in South Africa throu~h the broadcasts of the front-line States. While
it was essential to try to sustain the morale of the population in the region
suffering under that hideous system of racial discrimination, the anti-apartheid
information programmes also had to be quantitatively and qualitatively improved.
OPI would have, for the first time, an integrated, well-planned, co-ordinated
approach for a multi-media programme on that issue. The objective of that
programme would be to maintain and encourage existing support for the struggle
against apartheid and for Namibian independence and to sustain the morale of the
people within South Africa and Namibia. Furthermore, the programme would attempt
to strengthen international support for the independence of Namibia and the
eradication of the despicable system of apartheid.

5. In that context, she assured the representative of Kenya, who had expressed
Concern about the Division for Economic and Social Information, that OPI did not
intend to diminish the importance of the development information programme. A more
integrated intra-departmental approach. together with the expanded co-operation
with the specialized agencies recently initiated by the Secretary-General in the
Administrative Committee on Co-ordination, should strengthen even further the
development information programme.

6. A large number of delegations had referred to the need for equitable
geographical distribution in the staffing of the Department. She could not agree
with them more. The widest possible geographical representation was absolutely
imperative in order to achieve the level of excellence that she was committed to
strive for in the Department. In view of the need for OPI to reach out to and
communicate with all the peoples of the world, the Department must have talent
drawn from the full range of cultural and linguistic backgrounds which only wide
geographical representation could guarantee. While the situation in DPI was not

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 4

(Mr:s. Sevigny)

substantially different from that in the Secretariat as a whole, it was not one
which fully satisfied her. She assured the Committee, therefore, that she would
spare no effort in seeking to bring about a steady improvement in that regard and
stressed, in particular, that she was taking urgent measures to redress the current
imbalance at the senior levels.

7. Some comments had been made concerning the use of consultants, and some of
them had related to the geographical imbalance perceived to exist in a list
circulated recently within the house. That particular list, which was quite
incomplete, reflected a heavy imbalance. The Department of Public Information
relied on a variety of resources in order to implement its programme of work. The
regular staff resources were supplemented. as necessary, by short-term temporary
assistance and by individual or corporate consultants, depending on the particular
requiremel,ts. During 1987, such services had been contracted on more than 700
occasions, services as varied as contractual translation, serving as panelists in
television programmes, and doing radio or video narrations. In the case of
organizational management, the study to restructure the Department required her to
act expeditiously in contracting individuals whose expertise was personally known
to her. Naturally, that would not be the general practice 5ince, in that respect
as well, she was fUlly convinced of the necessity to ensure wide geographical
representation.

8. Turning to the questions raised by certain delegations, notably those of the
Ukrainian SSR, the Byelorussian SSR, Czechoslovakia, Hungary and the Soviet Union,
relating to the rationale for the restructuring plan and the number of
organizational units and senior level staff, she reiterated that the overriding
objective of the new structure was to obtain the maximum degree of efficiency in
the functioning of the Department and effectiveness in the fulfilment of the
mandate entrusted to it. To that end, and in an effort to eliminate to the maximum
extent duplication of effort, DPI had aimed at consolidating functions and fields
of expertise. In that way, it would be possible in the future to avoid the
blurring of responsibilities in such areas as distribution, publications and many
others. By consolidating them in functional areas, the Department would be able to
achieve greater effectiveness with the limited resources available.

9. The importance attached by Member States to the world-wide system of United
Nations information centres was fully appreciated. During the last session of the
Committee on Information, she had emphasized how innovative and creative measures
could help improve the effectiveness and efficiency of UNIC/UNIS, without
jeopardizing the functional autonomy they must have to accomplish their tasks. She
fully agreed with the many representatives who had expressed the view that the
network of United Nations information centres should be furthered strengthened,
streamlined and revitalized.

10. DPI was initiating a number of activities in that direction. An evaluation
was being undertaken to ensure optimal management with the resources at the
Department's disposal so that more countries could be covered, thereby extending
the United Nations outreach to the peoples of the world. In view of the constant
expansion of the activities of the United Nations, and in accordance with their

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 5

(Mrs. Sevigny)

obligations under the public information mandates of the General Assembly, the
information centres had steadily broadened the scope of their activities and
increased direct and systematic communication with local institution~. The
introduction of modern communication equipment, whenever practical, would be most
helpful since the usefulness of public information material depended very much on
their timely availability.

11. Quite a number of delegations, such as those of Egypt, Ethiopia, Kenya,
Mexico, Ne?al, Pakistan, the Philippines, Qatar, Venezuela, Viet Nam and Yemen, had
stressed the importance of the training programmes. She emphasized that, despite
financial CJts, DPI had consistently given priority to the training programme for
journalists and broadcasters from developing countries, and that she would ensure
the continuation of that important programme. The representatives of Kenya, Mali
and Morocco had pointed out that the fellowship programme for educators had
regrettably been suspended. In the context of the restructured DPI, it should be
possible to revive it and develcp other useful training programmes.

12. The representatives of Egypt and Trinidad and Tobago, among others, had urged
OPI to strengthen its relationship with the non-aligned and the developing
countries. The Department, as had been reported to the Committee on Information
the previous summer, had continued to work closely with the News Agencies Pool of
Non-Aligned Countries. She intended to e~plore further ways to establish concrete
programmes at the Third Conference of the Broadcasting Organizations of the
Non-Aligned Countries (BONAe) to be held in Cyprus in mid-December 1987. A
preliminary attempt had been made to co-operate with the Photo-Pool of the
Non-Aligned Countries as well. She reassured the developing countries that she
attached high priority to activities which could help strengthen the communication
and information infrastructure of the developing countries in order to correct t!ie
existing imbalances.

13. In conclusion, she emphasized the strong commitment of the Department to the
task of ensuring more efficient and effective information activities on behalf of
the United Nations and the peoples of the world.

14. She was committed to conveying to as wide a public as possible the message
that, in achieving those and other common human aspirations, the United Nations was
mor~ imporlant and relevant than it had been four decades earlier.

IS. lt was an age of unparalleled and increasing complexity. Mankind was caught
up in political, economic and technological change, which had reduced the
visibility of the United Nations. Yet, the Organization had a much wider set of
goals, preoccupations and concerns today and the citizens whom it represented faced
many pressing tasks - disarmament, economic and social development, the resolution
of conflicts, decolonization, the satisfaction of basic human needs and respect for
hum«n rights. The new global environment and the additional responsibilities of
OPI required an adequate financial resource base. She wished to draw the attention
of delegations most emphatically to that need.

/ ...



A/SIlC/4.I./SR.30
F.nglish
Pal'p. 6

16. Mr. RODRIGUEZ-MEDINA (Colombia) proposed thaL the statement by Mrs. Sevigny
~h(}llld be given full coverage in the summary record of that meeting.

17. It was so decided.

lR. Mr. KHUDYAKOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), speaking in exercise of
the right of reply, said that the statement made by the representative of the
Unit'!l\ States at the 28th meeting of the Committee was a striking example of "cold
war" diplomacy and could be used as a handbook for Member states on "What Subjects
to Avoid", inclUding such topics as thf! new world information and communication
order, "the new '~ay of thin~:ing" and "t'estructuring". The representative of the
(Jnited StaLes would have the members of the Committee discuss Dostoevski, socialist
re~li~m, Darwin, anything but the urgent problems affecting the overwhelming
~ajorlty of the States Members of the United Nations.

19. The Soviet delegation could not ignore the defiant and didactic tone of that
Btatemp.nt, which was in sharp c~n~rast to the businesslike and constructive
observations mDde by the other delegations. The rostrum of the United Nations
qhould be used for discussing vital problems, not for moralizing. In proposing the
establishment of a world information programme and the possibility of convening an
International conference under the auspices of the United Nations in order to

change views on the main '1uestions rell'lting to international information, the
.;wiet Union to.ad ~llVited delegations to discuss ideas and proposals in a dignified

and courteous manner. It did not intend to listen to a medley of labels,
accusations and er,oneous conclusions. It was clear that the delegation of the
United States had been occupied by other matters and had had no time to acquaint
itRelf with the text of the Soviet statement.

20. He pointed out for the information of the representative of the United States
that the proposal to establish a comprehenbive system of international security had
heen put forward by all the socialist States, not only the Sovi~t Union. Lastly,
in rli~cussing the questions relating to United Nations information activities and
the restructuring of DPI, the members of the Committee expected to hear replies to
their queries from the Secretariat, not from an individual delegation which mistook
tile Secretariat building for its mission across the street.

21. Mr. POLICHTCHOUK (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic), speaking In exercise
l)f the right of reply, sa id that in his statement on the agenda item undt.!C
c•.mslder.ltion, he had pointed out that the socialist countries should be duly
re?re~ented at the senior levels of the Department of Public Information. All the
I1dtlnnal~ from the Ukrainian SSR employed in the Department worked at the P-2 or
p-1 levpl!'! and were very well qualified, which was fully in keeping with
hrticles 100 and 101 of the Charter of the United Nations. Accordingly, the
:{tl.ltement m,lde by t,. ' repree-f1ntative of the United states, whORe tone had been
,ji.l.,ctlc dnd tac':.l~.,s, did not merit any reply.

22. Mr. KUNSTADTER (United States of America), speaking in exercise of the right
of reply, reminded the Committee that the next subject on its agenda for that
meeting was a very imp<)ttant one, that of peace-keeping operatiomi, and reqf"tt<!<1
th~t two delegations should hav~ soured th~ tone.

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 7

(Mr. Kunstadter, United States)

23. It appeared that the representative of the Soviet Union had not taken time to
listen carefully to the statement of the United States delegation or to read it in
its printed form. What the United States representative had been talking about W3S

concepts of information and communication. He had pointed out that language was a
very important part of any concept of information and communication. He had also
spoken seriously about the attention given in the United States at all levels to
problems of development, including development of communication infrastructure and
the efforts being made in his country to tackle them.

24. The opinions on the concept and exchange of information expressed each year by
certain delegations, including that of the Soviet Union, did not seem to reflect
new thinking. The United States had been built on new thinking and welcomed
change. It therefore examined matters connected with new thinking, restructuring,
pUblicity-mindedness or acceleration with great care because any country interested
in adapting internally and externally to a changing world was taking its
responsibility seriously. He was concerned at the totemic incantation of certain
words, and the practice of using the Special Political Committee to link the item
under discussion with a matter which was being discussed in the First Committee.

25. The United States delegation had talked about the importance of a free flow of
information based on t~ue development in a republican or democratic system.

26. A people's knowledge of its history was of crucial importance. He would give
just one example of how history was treated in the Soviet Union. The contemporary
writer, Yevgenii Yevtushenko had described how, at a youth camp, it had been stated
that perhaps 10 or 12 people had lost their lives in Stalin's purges in the 19305.
Yet Mr. Gorbachev had said in his recent statement in Moscow that many thousands
had lost their lives in those purges. It might be healthy if a system such as that
of the Soviet Union could tolerate open discussion of its past within its own
country, especially since there were many talented historians in the Soviet Union.
They might or might not decide that events since the 1930s had been necessary.
However, it took courage to allow free debate and access to information. It was
sometimes very difficult to find classics of Russian literature in the Soviet Union
because they were printed in small numbers or not at all.

27. In considering information issues in the Special Political Committee and in
the Committee on Information, it was necessary to discuss pragmatic, practical ways
of helping countries to develop their communications ir:frastructures and to discuss
in an intelligent and reasoned way how to further the work of OPI, and adapt it to
changing conditions.

28. It was encouraging to hear from the statement of the representative of the
Ukrainian SSR that more qualified women were taking United Nations examinations.
That would change the situation where, according to the report on the composition
of the Secretariat (A/C.5/42/L.2) there were 25 Ukrainian staff members in the
Secretariat at the Professional level, all of them men.

I ...



A!SPC!42!SR.30
~~ngl1~h

Page B

(Mr. Kunstanter, United States)

29. What underlay his statement at the preceding meeting was the need expressed in
the Helsinki Find Act and the Madrid Concluding Document for a free exchange of
information with nQ barriers.

]0. It was possible to buy the monthly edition of Pravda in English in kiosks and
supermarkets in New York. It would be an intlr••ti~elopment if the same was
true in the E.oviet Union, even for WesteLn pUblications in English. Should that
happen, it w01Jld be seen that words were being expressed in deeds "nd the
international community would be on the way to true mutual understanding.

31. Mr. KHUDYAKOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), speaking in exercise of
the right of reply, said that at the prlcedin] meeting, he had listened to a
lecture on literature and at the current meeting, there s~em.d to be a lecture by
the United States representative on history and the contemporary situation in the
Soviet Union. He wished to assure the United State. delegation that he was fully
aware of the hi8tory of the Soviet Union and of the current state of affairs and
the powerful winds of change which were blowing. On the other hand, he would
r~~ist the attempts being made to drag the Committee into a discussion irrelevant
to the item under consideration.

32. Aftar the conclusion of the debate on questions relating to information in the
Comlrittee, a working group was to try to draft the final documents on that item on
the basis of equality and free eKpression of views. He invited the United States
delegation, at least once, to show respect for the international community and take
part in working out those final documents.

33. Mr. KUNSTADTER (United States of America) said that ili: dlle~ation always
showed respect for the work of the United Natio",s. In response to the last requeet
by the representative of the Soviet Union, his delega~ion fully agreed.

AGENDA ITEM 751 REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE TO INVESTIGATE ISRAELI PRACTICES
AFFECTING THE HUMAN RIGHTS OF THE POPULATION OF THE OCCUPIED TERRITORIES I REPORTS
OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A!42/454, 455, 459, 460, 461, 462, 463, 650)

.34. Mr. RAMIN (Israel) said that the item under consideration, like all items
before the General Assembly, did not eKist in a vacuum. A. could not accept
certain claims which might restrict his right to eKplain his Government's
position. Israel had taken steps to prevent subversion and disruption of life in
the ar~an under di8cu~sion.

3'i. In that connection, it was essential to consider the positi"n taken by certain
neighbouring States - those which suoported subversion and those which were
victimized by it. The groups which :arried out such activity did not operate only
in Judea, Samaria, the Gaza District and Israel itself but also directed their
flllilversivI! activities againllt neighbouring countri'!!'!!. Those matters had been

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 9

(Mr. Ramin, Israel)

regularly raised by his and other delegations during the debate on the item in
previous lesuions of the Committee.

36. The report of the Special Committee to Investigate Practicea ~ffectinq the
Human Rights of the Population of the Occupied Territories (A/42/650) was again
replete with false accusations and distortions of truth. By painstaking ~nalysis

of the report, his delegation had, as in the past, shown its utter unreliability in
many respects. Yet the Special Committee was assured of the extension of its
mandate so long as it reached the predetermined conclusions expected of it.

37. Anyone could visit Istael and the territories under its administration, speak
with anyone he wished and see itl democracy in action. He could allo see the
conliderable development which had taken place in Judea, Samaria and the Gaza
District.

38. The Special Committee took it that the presence of Israel, particularly in the
parts of mandated Palestine formerly occupied by Jordan and Egypt, constituted the
original sin from which stemmed all evil, entirely ignoring the circumstances
behind llrael'l presence in those territories. The Special C~mmittee consistently
conveyed misguided concepts about security issues and the regional political
background in a way that made it impossible to understand properly the situation in
the territories.

39. Everyone knew that those territories had played a significant role in the Arab
wars against Israel. Before the birth of the State of Israel, the Jewish national
liberation movement had suffered indirect and then direct aggression by the League
of ~rab States. From those territories, as well as from the north and south, the
Arab States had launched their war against Israel in 1948. The Jewish community
had been left with a choice between annihilation and self-defence. The result was
the survival of Israel and the occupation of certain parts of mandated Palestine.
The present territorial situation derived directly from the outcome of the Arab
aggression in 1967.

40. Ever since Judea, Samaria and the Gaza District had been under Israeli
control, the Arab rejectionists had tried to reconvert them into forward bases.
They had allocated the terrorist Palestine Liberation Organization (PLO) a special
role to use the territories as bridgeheads for acts of hostility, terror sabotage
and subversion against Israel and it! civilian population.

41. The application of the principles of human rights in Judea, Samsria and the
Gaza District could not be examined without reference to the circumstances
prevailing there. International law clearly lecognized the fact that, in addition
to ensuring the welfare of the local population, the authorities had a clear duty
to protect that population, together with their own, against the dangers of
disorder and terrorism.

42. As in previous years, the Special Committee had focuF.ed attention on the
fourth Geneva Convention of 1949. As it had stated in tha past, it was the

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
Enqlish
Page 10

(Mr. Ramin, Israel)

considered opinion or the Israeli Government that that Convention was not
applicable as such in the areas administered by Israel. In hat, it had the
support of acknowledged authorities in international law. Israel maintained that
in view or the sui generis status of Judea, Samaria and the Gaza District, the
de jure applicability or the rourth Geneva Convention to thol. ar.al was doubtrul.
Israel prererred to leave alide the legal question or the statuI or those areas and
had decided, since 1967, to act de racto in accordance with the humanitarian
provisions or that C~nvention.

43. Some held the contrary view, not always ror purely legal realOI.s. However,
notwithstanding the legal aspects or the question, Israel applied the principles of
the rourth Geneva Convention in the area and even we~t rurther than the
requirements. For example, the rourth Geneva Convention allowed capital
punishment, whereas Israel had never applied the death penalty in the occupied
areas, despite acts or indiscriminate murder and terrorilt outragel. The
Convention did not provide ror accels by local populationl to the courts or the
administering Power whereas Israel allowed access irrelpective of whether the cases
were beinq brought against individuals, the Government or Ilrael or any of its
otricials. There was no provilion in the Convention ror tacilitating movement of
the local population outside the territoriel, whereal Iarael permitted luch
movement in both directions, including movement to and rrom Arab countriel which
regarded themselves IS being in a state of war with Israel. IIlter aHa, Israel
racilitated pilgrimaqes to Makkah, where, as he had laid in a previous statement,
an Israeli citizen had been killed. The Convention laid nothing about trade abroad
by the territories in queltion, whereas Ilrael facilitated luch trade, even with
Arab countries.

44. Over the years, the Special Committee had relied on article 49 or the fourth
Geneva Convention to support its thesis that no settlements by llraelis were
allowed in the administere1 areas. No question or practices affecting the human
rights of the lo~al population arose there, but even if the laws of belligerent
occupation were for some reason applicable, it should be borne in mind that
article 49 of the fourth Geneva Convention, which was distorted by the Special
Committee, forbade forcible transfers and not voluntary acts of individuals wishing
to take up residence in the areas concerned. The leading treatieD on that matter,
Oppenheim-Lauterpacht's International L~w, volume 11, seventh edition (1952),
page 452, stated that the provision contained in article 49 of the fourth Geneva
Convention was a prohibition intended to cover cases of the occupant bringing in
its nationals for the purpose of displacing the population of the occupied
t~rritory. No diRp1acement of the' local popUlation had taken place. In fact, the
population of the administered areas had increased since 1967 by about
28 per cent. It was clear therefore that article 49 of the Convention did not
apply.

45. In its attempt to distort the r~a1ities prevailing in the territories
administered by Israel, ':l1e bpecial Committee had chosen to disregard the crimes
committed on behalf of the terrorist PLO and it1 affiliates. Those acts would be
punishable in all countries. According to its Government, the declared aim of that

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 11

(Mr. Ramin, Israel)

terrorist organization was to liquidate the State of Israel through "armed
struggle". Disregard of those realities seriously detracted from any analysis of
the subject under discussion.

46. In order to counter the perverted picture presented by the Special Committee
of the conditions obtaining in Judea, Samaria and the Gaza District, he wished to
describe the true situation. Since 1967, the Israeli Government had carried out a
constructive programme of development, marked by human concern for the
inhabitants. Visitors to those areas noted the absence of large numbers of troops,
and the civil police were largely recruited locally. Agriculture continued to be
the chief economic activity of those areas. The sharing of Israel's expertise with
local farmers, the introduction of modern farming methods and increased use of
mechanized equipment after 1967 had doubled agricultural production per unit of
land and brought the rate of growth to about 10 per cent per year.

47. Prior to 1967, lack of raw materials, infrastructure and skilled workers had
limited industry in Judea and Samaria and the Gaza District to small workshops and
factories. Since then, new industrial enterprises had been established, and
productivity in existing enterprises had risen, primarily due to the increased
investment and upgrading of the labour force through extensive vocational training
programmes.

48. Judea, Samaria and the Gaza District had been characterized by a very low
labour force participation rate and chrvnic unemployment (10 per cent in Judea and
Samaria, over 40 per cen~ in the Gaza District). Since 1967, the openin~ of
Israel's labour market to residents of the areas had greatly improved employment
opportunities, bringing virtually full employment to both areas for the first time
in their history. A network of 38 employment offices, staffed by residents of the
areas, had been established to direct workers to vacancies and to enSure that they
received the pay and benefits prescribed by law.

49. The Government-sponsored vocational education had been virtually non-existent
in the years before 1967. Currently, 26 vocational training centres were in
operation in Judea, Samaria and the Gaza District, with about 4,500 trainees
obtaining diplomas in over 200 courses per year. Those courses varied according to
l(~al needs, with the current emphasis on teaching industrial skills to teenage
youth. Since 1968, about 25 per cent of the area's labour force had participated
in one or more training courses or upgrading programmes.

50. The participation of women in society had increased, and they now comprised 20
per cent of graduates of vocational training courses, 44 per cent of students
enrolled at local universities and 11 per cent of the labour force.

51. In the early 1970s, about one half of the adult population of Judea, Samaria
and the Gaza District had never attended school, and only 19 per cent had nine or
more years of education. A decade later, those without any schooling had declined
to 28 per cent, while 38 per cent had completed nine or more ye~rs. The school
systems of hoth areas had expanded suhstantL311y since 1967, with mor,~ girls

.I • • ,



A/SPC/42/SR.30
Engl ish
Page 12

(Mr. Ramin, Israel)

attending school, more pupils continuing into the upper grades and more and
better-qualified teachers available.

52. Education in both areas was free and compulsory at the primary and
intermediate levels and free at the secondary level. The pre-existing structures
and standards had been retained, following Jordanian curricula in Judea and Samaria
and Egyptian curricula in the Gaza District. In each area, the educational system
included government schools, which were financed and operated by the civil
administration, provided 14 years of free schooling and accounted for 65 per cent
of all pupils, the UNRWA schools, which offered nine years of free schooling, and
various private schools. There had been no universities in Judea, Samaria and the
Gaza District in 1967. Since that time, six universities had been established with
the authorization and encouragement of the civil administration.

53. Since 1967, the f.ocus of social service activities in the administered areas
had changed from the distribution of food and money to destitute people to an
emphasis on occupational and physical rehabilitation designed to help recipients
help themselves. There were more than twice as many social service bureaux
operating in the areas today than in 1967. Community development projects had been
initiated, particularly in the Gaza District where more than 10,000 families had
been enabled to leave refugee camps and relocate in new residential areas.

54. The health situation in both areas had improved greatly, as was indicated by
an increase in life expectancy from 48 years in 1967 to 62 years today. Epidemics
had been brought under control and, with the immunization of about 90 per cent of
the areas' children, the incidence of infectious diseases in early childhood had
decreased sharply. In Judea and Samaria, the number of health clinics had more
than doubled, and in the Gaza District new health facilities had been established
to provide medical services for every village. Hospitals in both areas had been
reorganized and upgraded. Regular interaction between medical institutions in the
administered areas and those in Israel had served to promote efficient hospital
administration and patient care and to prOVide consultation opportunities for
difficult cases.

~5. There were now almost twice as many health service employees as there had been
in 1967. Twelve nursing schools had been opened in the areas since 1971, and they
had a Cllt:r-:nt enrolment of about 600 students. Voluntary health insurance plans
were now available to all area residents, and about 40 per cent of the residents of
JU(10:\ ,i~~'·1 (;::l~,lr i,1 "nd 80 per cent of the population of the G""za Distr ict wer<:!
covered j\lr hospi ta 1ization and other health services.

56. Sinc0 1968, more than 9 million persons had crossed the bridges over the
Jordan River in both directions. Arabs from Judea, Samaria and Gaza entered and
left Israel freely, as did Israelis and foreign visitors wishing to visit those
areas. Residents of Judea. Samaria and Gaza could invite relatives from enemy
countries for prolonged visits. and large numbers of people entered the areas in
that manner every year.

I . ..



A/SPC/42/SR.30
Englillh
Page 13

(Mr. Ramin, Israel)

57. The civil and religious tribunals in the administered areas, which were made
up of local judges, had continued to func~ion and to apply the civil and religious
laws that had previously been in force.

58. The Arabic press criticized the Israeli authorities whenever it saw fit to do
so. ~s in Israel, censorship was confined to questions of military security, as
was necessary in a country not yet at peace with all its neighbouls, and it applied
to Hebrew and Arauic newspapers alike.

59. There were indeed occasional demonstrations and acts of defiance in the
administered areas, largely instigated from outside. The situation in Judea,
Samaria and Gaza was satisfactory in comparison with that in many other countries
which were not privileged to receive so much attention from the Unit~d Nations. If
an impartial observer was to survey the political and secutity situation in any
other country of the region, he would find that di~ruptions of day-to-day life in
the territories in question were far less significant.

60. A distc)(ted version '.f the situation prevailing in the areas adminietered by
Israel had been given in the report of the Special Committee, which ignored the
positive aspects of life there. The activities of the Special Committee, which was
indeed a very special committee and membership of which had become a sinecure,
should be brought to an end. The Special Committee had no valid reason to engage
in a repetitive and unproductive exercise in a way designed to obstruct
reconciliation and peace in the region.

61. A positive and constructive approach was requ1red on the part of all
concerned, including the Palestinian Arabs living in Judea, Samaria and the Gaza
District. Rather than encouraging the annual sterile and obscene anti-Israel
ritual, the General Assembly should support the efforts being made for peace in the
region in a manner worthy of the true principles and purp03es of the Charter of the
United Nations.

62. Mr. SHAH (Pakistan) said that the measures instituted by the Israeli
authorities in the occupied territories aimed not only at changing their
demographic character but also at undermining existing social, cultural, political
and educational structures in bn attempt to destroy the identity of the Palestinian
people.

fi). Israel's allegatil)ns of bias iJ'Jainst the Special Committee could not be
sustained. It had refllsed t,o co-operate with t.he Spel':ial Committee because it: riid
not wish the United Nations and the interndL 10nal community to obtain a firsthand
account nf its flagrant violations of international law and of the fourth Geneva
Convention relative to the Protection \lf Civilian Persons in Time of War, of
12 August 1949, which was applicable to the Arab territories occupied by Israel in
1967.

64. The exploitation and looting of the resources of the occupied territories,
attempts to Judaize the system of education, the pillaging of the local

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page 14

(Mr. Shah, Pakistan)

archeological and cultural heritage and interference with the freedom of worship in
the Holy Placee had been undertaken with a view to obliterating the physical and
political character an~ cultural characteristics of those territories. His
delegation would like to express its concern at the Israeli excavations in the
vicinity of the AI-Aqea Mosque, which would wtlaken the foundations and transform
the physical settinq of important Islamic shrines and ",:-'1uments.

65. The general climate of tension and repression in the occupied territories had
worsened, and the various forms of humiliation to which the Arab population was
sUbjected had been intensified. The right of family reunification had been denied
and, in some cases, even children hen not been immune from indiscriminate
violence. Collective punishment, arbitrary expulsion and deportation had
continued. The control exerted by Israel over water resources had subjected
workers and farmers to increasing int~rference and har,ssment.

66. In calling for the extension of the mandate of the Special Committee, his
delegation wished to stress the need for the international community to assume its
responsihilities in order to prevent further deterioration and to provide adequate
safeguards for the protection of the fundamental rights and freedoms of the
civilians in the occupie~ territoried.

67. llis delegation strongly condemned policies of aggresBion, annexation and
expansion wherever they might occur in the world. It called upon Israel to
withdraw from all the occupied territories, including ,Jerusalem, and to refrain
from any action which might further exacerbate tension~ in a highly volatile area.

GB. Pakistan saluted the heroic struggle of the Palestinian people, which had
emerged stronger from each ordeal and more confident of the ultimate triumph of its
cause. Only if Israel accepted the justice of the Palestinian cause and restrained
its expansionist appetite and aggressive designs could peace be r.e~Lor.ed to the
regi()n.

6Q. Mr. FANG Uihuai (China) sald that hl~ delegation wished to eKpress its deep
regret that Israel had chosen to ignore world puhlic opinion and General Assembly
ra~olutions urging it to respect the human rights of the population of the occupied
ter ri todes.

70. AB could be seen from the Clurent report of the SpecLl1 Committee, the Israeli
authorities had stepped up their vinlations of human rights in the occupied
territories, had continued to seize lands belonging to the Ara~ inhabitants and had
eHtnbllsh~d more Je\~ish settlements. Many Arabs had been expelled from their
homelilnd and deprived of thF!ir means of survival. The ohvious aim of the Israeli
authorities was to change the demograp~.lc composition of thl! occupied territories
50 .15 to perpetllalf~ their occupation. Such actions were in contravention of the
provisions of the Geneva Convention reliltive to the Protection of Civilian Persons
in Time of War and also of the principles of international law prohibiting the
acqlli~ltion of tere itory by force.

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.30
English
Page lS

(Mr. Fang Dihuai, China)

71. Sinc~ Israeli practices affecting human rights had naturally met with
resistance from the local inhabitants, relations between them and the Israeli
authorities had always been marked by tension and confrontation. The most recent
example had been the demonstrations that had taken place to mark the fourteenth
anniversary of the war of October 1973, in the course of which Israeli soldiers had
opened fire and caused heavy casualities. His delegation wished to eKpress its
condemnation of such actions.

72. tlis delegation was of the view that, in order to put an end to Israeli
violations of human rights in the occupied territories, it was imperative to seek a
comprehensive and just settlement of the Middle East question and to terminate the
Israeli military occupation altogether. His Government had consistently opposed
lRrael's policies of aggression and expansion and had firmly supported the
P~lestinian and other Arab peoples and their just struggle to recover the occupied
territories and restore their national rights. Israel must withdraw from all the
Arab territories it had occupied since 1967. All countries in the region had a
~ight to exist and a right to independence. His delegation favoured the convening
of an International Peace Conference on the Middle East under the auspices of tho
United Nations and supported the efforts being made by the Secretary-General to
that end. The Palestine Liberation Organization, which was internationally
recognized as the legitimate representative of the Palestinian people, was entitled
to participate in the Conference on an equ~l footing. His delegation hoped that
the Arab countries and the PLO would make a concerted effort to bring about a
comprehensive and just settlement of the Middle East question at an early date.

The meeting rose at 12.10 p.m.


